Attendance, approximately 50 people, no roll taken

- 1. Welcome and Call to Order by Connie Phelps. 2:07pm
- 2. Approval of minutes from Feb. 14, 2014 meeting. Steven Shalit moved, Edit Bourgeois seconded. Motion passed.
- 3. Brief remarks by Chair. Two motions today. First, bylaws change. Second, proposal to create a Faculty Governance Committee. The second matter does not have a formal resolution yet, but there will be a discussion based upon Senate President's letter to President Peter Fos, which was circulated with the agenda. Connie Phelps introduced Dr. Richard Hansen, who is our interim VP for Academic Affairs. She welcomed him to UNO.
- 4. Discussion about the Goss' proposed motion to amend the bylaws (see Attachment 1). Andrew Goss explained his intentions of formally establishing that the University Courses and Curricula Committee and the General Education Committee are committees of the faculty and hence should be under Faculty Council. Nancy Easterlin seconded the motion. Lengthy discussion ensued. Interim VP for Academic Affairs Richard Hansen spoke in support of the motion. A number of concerns about the language (including the exact composition of the Gen Ed committee) were raised, but the consensus was to study this matter further and to pass a further resolution in the Fall. There were three friendly amendments, which Goss accepted.
 - a. Friendly amendment. "University President" instead of "President" where the UNO President is meant (to prevent confusion with the Faculty Senate President)
 - b. Friendly amendment. Establish that the Chair of both committees is a faculty member.
 - c. Friendly amendment. "and the library" in the gen ed committee language

Resolution passed unanimously with no abstentions. Amended Faculty Council bylaws are attached (Attachment 3).

5. Faculty Governance Committee. Connie Phelps explained Elaine Brooks' letter (see Attachment 2). Moved by Chris Day, 2nd Nancy Easterlin to have SEC establish Faculty Governance Committee. Steve Striffler's elaboration that it will help put together a committee that could reestablish shared governance. No necessarily permanent. Dinah Payne: explained that this was not intended to be forever, but was a way to get good representation, and perhaps not too large. Initiation of the discussion. Renia Ehrenfeucht. Likes the idea, as a way to bring shared governance back and chart a way to get policies put in place. Find a procedure for making this work. We got to an impasse, and we want to prevent that. Ali Arnold: doesn't this overlap with other committees. Dinah Payne. Maybe, we didn't know. Comment: temporary committee, to get us past this crisis and put together new procedures. Crisis management. Richard Speaker: going to get us through this. James Lowry: needs an ad hoc committee to get moving soon, today. We are wasting time, and we need to get this going soon, today actually. Discussion about the composition of the committee – arts, science and engineering need to be involved = represented on the committee.

Matt Tarr's amendment, re: composition: 1 faculty member from each college+library (not from FSEC), 1 dean, 1 SEC, 1 FC officer. East Easterlin seconded amendment. Jim Logan: concerned that SEC was not working right. Wants a smaller group. Steve Striffler argued for a larger group. Mokhiber advocated for the AFTPE committee being added. Accountability. Specific time. Make

a quorum rule though. And there was further discussion about the composition of the meeting. Richard Speaker: FC can't make ad hoc committees. Suggests that we go through SEC.

Then, specific discussion about Tarr amendment. Edit Bourgeois called the question. Matt seconded. Calling the question passed unanimously. Amendment: 5 in favor. 20 opposed. 1 abstention. Amendment does not carry. P. Jenkins called the question on E. Brooks letter/motion. Steve Striffler seconded. Vote on original resolution: 19 in favor. 6 opposed. 1 abstention. Motion carries. Resolution is a recommendation to the SEC to put together a Faculty Governance committee.

6. Open Forum: Edit Bourgeois. Does the Cost Containment and Resolution committee still exist? Ivan stated he did not know. He hadn't heard about the committee in a while. Mokhiber: would it be possible for the SEC to ask the administration to make the budget more available. Marie: Lassen said the budget would be put on sharepoint, to the Senate budget committee. P. Jenkins: are the firings done? Is there some way to find out how they are doing: are they getting job counseling. Goss. Question of budget. Jeanne Pavy: budget is on sharepoint, under Financial Services. UNO operating budget is available. Ivan. Wants to know how this has been handled. 28 people save \$2 million, but can that be true, given how late it is in the year. Questions about whether we are before or after budget. But there was a \$6 million gap. How far behind budget are we? Where are we now? Or do we still have the sword hanging over our heads? How much more needs to be cut? -- VP Hansen will get a report?

Motion to adjourn: Nancy Easterlin moved. Beth Blankenship seconded. Meeting adjourned at 3:47pm

Attachment 1

Motion to amend the Faculty Council Bylaws, by altering Article V "Committees" by replacing

"Section 2. University standing committees. The Faculty Senate will establish, set charges for, and supervise the University standing committees except for the Courses and Curriculum Committee and committees dealing with disciplinary matters."

With:

"Section 2. University Courses and Curricula Committee. This committee is charged with reviewing all course and curricula changes, catalog alterations, and policies that govern curricula, courses and graduation requirements.

Its membership is appointed by the President upon the recommendation of the Faculty Senate. The voting members will be two faculty members from each college and one from the Library with staggered terms of three years. Faculty members must be of Assistant, Associate or Full Professor rank with at least one year's experience at UNO in any rank.

The University Courses and Curricula Committee's will work in conjunction with the office of Academic Affairs to develop procedures for approving changes to the courses and curricula of the University of New Orleans, as well as the university catalog. In order to facilitate reporting via the Faculty Senate, the President of the Faculty Senate, or his or her designee, will be an ex officio non-voting member of the committee. Committee decisions are subject to appeal to the Faculty Council.

Section 3. General Education Committee. The General Education Committee is a university-wide, standing committee charged with providing leadership for the overall direction and support of the general education curriculum. The committee will monitor general education requirements and review changes made to the program. The committee will oversee general education assessment and evaluation to ensure integrated, meaningful and sustained improvement.

The responsibilities of the committee consist of the following: Develop and maintain criteria for general education courses; Oversee assessment and evaluation of general education goals and student learning outcomes; Steward data for improvement purposes; Provide recommendations for budgeting and strategic planning based on assessment results; Communicate the results of assessment efforts to appropriate campus and external stakeholders to promote accountability and transparency; Serve as a resource for general education efforts on campus

Its membership is appointed by the President upon the recommendation of the Faculty Senate and the Office of Academic Affairs. The voting membership is comprised of: faculty representation from each college, nominated by the Faculty Senate, with at least two members from the College of Liberal Arts and the College of Sciences. In addition, Academic Affairs will

nominate a total of four committee members drawn from the college administrations and the Office of Academic Affairs.

In order to facilitate reporting via the Faculty Senate, the President of the Faculty Senate, or his or her designee, will be an ex officio non-voting member of the committee. Committee decisions are subject to appeal to the Faculty Council.

Section 4. **University Standing Committees**. University Standing Committees whose charges fall within the purview of the Faculty Council's responsibilities will report to an administrative officer via the Faculty Senate. Such active University Standing Committees are to make a formal report to the Faculty Senate once per academic year.

A four member committee on committees will monitor and oversee the activities of all University Standing Committees. They are charged with maintaining and updating the University Standing Committee governance document. Two faculty members of this committee on committees are to be appointed by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee.

Section 5. **Ad hoc University Committees**. Ad hoc University Committees authorized by the university President whose charge fall within the responsibilities of the Faculty Council shall have faculty membership nominated by the President of the Faculty Senate."

Attachment 2

Dear Peter,

The Faculty Senate Executive Committee met today and discussed a number of issues pertinent to the departure of the Provost. One very strong sentiment that was expressed was the idea that we greatly value the initiatives developed by the Office of Academic Affairs regarding a variety of issues. As a result, the Executive Committee developed a proposal for better shared governance between administration and faculty.

The Faculty Senate Executive Committee has proposed the establishment of the Faculty Governance Committee under the authority of the Faculty Council. This Committee is to be charged with the ongoing efforts, initiated by the Office of Academic Affairs, in the areas of program evaluation and review, performance evaluation, workload policy and unit restructuring.

We have determined membership of this committee to represent primarily faculty. As such, we constitute the committee to include all members of the Faculty Senate Executive Committee, the Officers of the Faculty Council and the members of the Faculty Senate Academic Freedom, Tenure and Professional Ethics Committee.

Additionally, we value chair and administrative faculty knowledge and insight; thus, we have determined to include two Deans and one Chair to be invited to join with the faculty in the commission of these efforts of this committee. We propose to include the Dean of the College of Education, the Interim Dean of the College of Liberal Arts and the Chair of the English Department.

While this is a proposal that awaits acceptance by all of the Officers of the Faculty Council, we have confidence that this proposal will go forward. As we greatly value your leadership in the efforts to facilitate truly effective shared governance, we would value your recommendations for additional members of this Committee. Please let me know, at your earliest convenience, who you would recommend as being pro-active, positive influences on the formation of our own recommendations regarding program evaluation and review, performance evaluation, workload policy and unit restructuring.

Thank you for your continued good faith efforts to lead this University to the great heights our students deserve: we appreciate your efforts on our own behalf and especially on behalf of our students.

Elaine S. Brooks Faculty Senate President

Attachment 3

Bylaws of the University of New Orleans Faculty Council

Article I. Functions and Purpose

The Faculty Council or appropriate standing committees thereof shall have coordinating authority in all matters involving the establishing of curricula, the fixing of standards of instruction, the determining of requirements for degrees, and generally the determining of the educational policy of UNO in all matters affecting more than a single college, school, or division, and shall advise the administration in other matters as appropriate.

Article II. Members

Section 1. Composition. The UNO Faculty Council shall consist of all full-time faculty of the University of New Orleans.

Section 2. Faculty. The Faculty of the university shall consist of all members of the academic staff having the rank of instructor or higher who are appointed full-time for at least one year.

Article III. Officers

- **Section 1. Officers.** The officers shall be a chair, a vice chair, a secretary, and a parliamentarian elected by the members of the Faculty by a majority vote of those present and voting.
- **Section 2. Chair.** The Chair shall call the Faculty Council into session in accordance with Article IV of these Bylaws and shall coordinate the meetings and the agendas.
- Section 3. Vice Chair. The Vice Chair shall serve in the Chair's absence.
- **Section 4. Secretary.** The Secretary shall record and electronically disseminate the minutes of the Faculty Council, shall conduct its correspondence, and shall issue notification of meetings in accordance with the provisions of Article IV of the Bylaws.
- **Section 5.** Parliamentarian. The Parliamentarian shall follow Roberts Rules of Order, Revised as designated in Article VII of the Bylaws to enforce the rules of order during Faculty Council meetings.

Article IV. Meetings

Section 1. Meetings. The Faculty Council shall meet at least once per year in the Fall semester at which time Faculty Council officers will be elected and Faculty will present and discuss issues of immediate concern and importance. All Faculty may submit issues for discussion. The Chair will issue a call to all Faculty for submission of issues and concerns a month prior to the fall meeting. The faculty member submitting the issue will be in charge of organizing the

information and leading the discussion. Also, the chair will call a meeting of the Faculty Council upon the written request of 50 members of the Faculty Council. At least seven days' notice of meetings shall be given all members by the secretary of the Faculty Council.

Section 2. Quorum. Twenty-five percent of the membership of the Faculty Council shall constitute a quorum. No quorum shall be considered to exist at any time between the close of the spring semester and at the beginning of the following fall semester, except that the Faculty Council may call a special meeting during this period by a two-thirds vote at a regular meeting.

Article V. Committees

Section 1. Faculty Senate. As a standing committee of the UNO Faculty Council, the Faculty Senate is a representative body of the faculty under the administration of the University of New Orleans, the Faculty Senate is constituted to promote and implement, consistent with the purposes of the University, maximum participation of the faculty in university governance. In this capacity, the Faculty Senate will assist the administration in such matters of primary faculty responsibility, such as academic standards and curriculum, student affairs, and administrative policy as it affects faculty welfare. Further, the Faculty Senate shall have authority in all matters affecting more than a single college, school, or a division and involving the establishment of curricula, the fixing of standards of instruction, the determination of requirements for degrees, and generally the formulation of the educational policy of the University in such matters.

The Faculty Senate will aid in the selection of university-wide administrators. The Faculty Senate shall establish, set charges for, and supervise University and Senate standing committees. It shall be responsible for populating membership of specified University committees.

The Faculty Senate will advise the administration in the formulation and execution of policy with respect to the broadly defined goals, priorities, and financial needs of the University. The Faculty Senate shall serve as the forum for meetings between University administration and faculty regarding relevant issues for debate and discussion. This body will also serve as a forum for advocacy of faculty prerogative and position on important academic and University matters.

The Faculty Senate shall be the organ for dissemination of appropriate administrative information to faculty. The Faculty Senate will also communicate faculty interests to the public and public officials as deemed appropriate in furthering the purpose of the organization.

Section 2. University Courses and Curricula Committee. This committee is charged with reviewing all course and curricula changes, catalog alterations, and policies that govern curricula, courses and graduation requirements.

Its membership is appointed by the University President upon the recommendation of the Faculty Senate. The voting members will be two faculty members from each college and one from the Library with staggered terms of three years. Faculty members must be of Assistant, Associate or Full Professor rank with at least one year's experience at UNO in any rank. The Chair of the University Courses and Curricula Committee will be elected at the first meeting of the academic

year. Faculty with an administrative position above Department Chair will not be qualified to serve as Chair.

The University Courses and Curricula Committee's will work in conjunction with the office of Academic Affairs to develop procedures for approving changes to the courses and curricula of the University of New Orleans, as well as the university catalog. In order to facilitate reporting via the Faculty Senate, the President of the Faculty Senate, or his or her designee, will be an ex officio non-voting member of the committee. Committee decisions are subject to appeal to the Faculty Council.

Section 3. General Education Committee. The General Education Committee is a university-wide, standing committee charged with providing leadership for the overall direction and support of the general education curriculum. The committee will monitor general education requirements and review changes made to the program. The committee will oversee general education assessment and evaluation to ensure integrated, meaningful and sustained improvement.

The responsibilities of the committee consist of the following: Develop and maintain criteria for general education courses; Oversee assessment and evaluation of general education goals and student learning outcomes; Steward data for improvement purposes; Provide recommendations for budgeting and strategic planning based on assessment results; Communicate the results of assessment efforts to appropriate campus and external stakeholders to promote accountability and transparency; Serve as a resource for general education efforts on campus

Its membership is appointed by the University President upon the recommendation of the Faculty Senate and the Office of Academic Affairs. The voting membership is comprised of: faculty representation from each college and the library, nominated by the Faculty Senate, with at least two members from the College of Liberal Arts and the College of Sciences. In addition, Academic Affairs will nominate a total of four committee members drawn from the college administrations and the Office of Academic Affairs. The Chair of the General Education Committee will be elected at the first meeting of the academic year. Faculty with an administrative position above Department Chair will not be qualified to serve as Chair of the General Education Committee.

In order to facilitate reporting via the Faculty Senate, the President of the Faculty Senate, or his or her designee, will be an ex officio non-voting member of the committee. Committee decisions are subject to appeal to the Faculty Council.

Section 4. University Standing Committees. University Standing Committees whose charges fall within the purview of the Faculty Council's responsibilities will report to an administrative officer via the Faculty Senate. Such active University Standing Committees are to make a formal report to the Faculty Senate once per academic year.

A four member committee on committees will monitor and oversee the activities of all University Standing Committees. They are charged with maintaining and updating the University Standing Committee governance document. Two faculty members of this committee on committees are to be appointed by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee.

Section 5. Ad hoc University Committees. Ad hoc University Committees authorized by the University President whose charge fall within the responsibilities of the Faculty Council shall have faculty membership nominated by the President of the Faculty Senate.

Article VI. Limitations

Section 1. Vetoes. Any decision of a Committee of the Faculty Council or of the Faculty Council may be vetoed by a two-thirds vote of the entire faculty of any one college or academic division, or by a two-thirds vote of the entire Faculty Council, present and voting, provided that such veto is voted at a Faculty Council meeting not later than 30 days after the decision. A two-thirds vote of the Faculty Council present and voting is required to override such a veto. If the veto is not overridden at the meeting at which it occurs, the entire voting membership of the Faculty Council must be informed in detail of the veto and of the matter vetoed no later than two week following the veto action.

Section 2. Authority. Action taken by the Faculty Council shall be subject only to the superior authority of the Board of Supervisors. Should any action taken by the Faculty Council be deemed by the President of UNO or by the President of the University System to be of an administrative rather than an academic nature, or not in the best interest of the University, each shall have the power to suspend the enforcement of such action pending final disposition by the Board of Supervisors.

Article VII. Parliamentary Authority

All meetings of the Faculty Council shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.

Article VIII. Amendments

Amendments to these Bylaws may be proposed by the University Senate or by the Faculty Council, and must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Faculty Council membership present and voting, prior notice of one week having been given of any amendment to be presented for approval.

Approved October 22, 2012

Amended March 11, 2014 [Article V, section 2-5]